1989

# Jerry Spicer v. Michael S. Hughes : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

Follow this and additional works at: [https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu\\_ca1](https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca1)



Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Court of Appeals; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Edward T. Wells; J.H. Bottum and Associates; Attorney for Plaintiff-Appellant.

Michael H. Wray; Neeleman and Wray; Attorney for Defendant-Respondent.

---

## Recommended Citation

Brief of Appellant, *Spicer v. Hughes*, No. 890586 (Utah Court of Appeals, 1989).  
[https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu\\_ca1/2213](https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca1/2213)

This Brief of Appellant is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Court of Appeals Briefs by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at [http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah\\_court\\_briefs/policies.html](http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah_court_briefs/policies.html). Please contact the Repository Manager at [hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu](mailto:hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu) with questions or feedback.

**BRIEF**

UTAH  
DOCUMENT  
U

---

DOCKET NO. **890586-CA** IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF UTAH

---

JERRY SPICER,

Plaintiff - Appellant

v.

MICHAEL S. HUGHES,

Defendant - Respondent.

:  
:  
:  
:  
:  
:  
:  
:  
:  
:  
:

Docket No. 890586CA

Priority No. 14b

---

**APPELLANT'S BRIEF**

---

Appeal from Judgment of the Third Judicial District Court  
in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah  
The Honorable Scott Daniels, Judge, Presiding

---

Michael Wray  
1061 East 2100 South  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84106  
Telephone: (801) 487-3222  
Attorney for Michael S. Hughes,  
Defendant - Respondent

Edward T. Wells  
J. H. Bottum & Associates  
418 Kearns Building  
136 South Main Street  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101  
Telephone: (801) 538-0700  
Attorney for Jerry Spicer,  
Plaintiff - Appellant

ADDENDUM TO  
APPELLANT'S BRIEF

the appointment. Thereafter, the term of office of a judge of the Court of Appeals is six years and commences on the first Monday in January, next following the date of election. A judge whose term expires may serve, upon request of the Judicial Council, until a successor is appointed and qualified. The presiding judge of the Court of Appeals shall receive as additional compensation \$1,000 per annum or fraction thereof for the period served.

(2) The Court of Appeals shall sit and render judgment in panels of three judges. Assignment to panels shall be by random rotation of all judges of the Court of Appeals. The Court of Appeals by rule shall provide for the selection of a chair for each panel. The Court of Appeals may not sit en banc.

(3) The judges of the Court of Appeals shall elect a presiding judge from among the members of the court by majority vote of all judges. The term of office of the presiding judge is two years and until a successor is elected. A presiding judge of the Court of Appeals may serve in that office no more than two successive terms. The Court of Appeals may by rule provide for an acting presiding judge to serve in the absence or incapacity of the presiding judge.

(4) The presiding judge may be removed from the office of presiding judge by majority vote of all judges of the Court of Appeals. In addition to the duties of a judge of the Court of Appeals, the presiding judge shall

- (a) administer the rotation and scheduling of panels,
  - (b) act as liaison with the Supreme Court,
  - (c) call and preside over the meetings of the Court of Appeals, and
  - (d) carry out duties prescribed by the Supreme Court and the Judicial Council.
- (5) Filing fees for the Court of Appeals are the same as for the Supreme Court. 1988

#### 78-2a-3. Court of Appeals jurisdiction.

(1) The Court of Appeals has jurisdiction to issue all extraordinary writs and to issue all writs and process necessary

- (a) to carry into effect its judgments, orders and decrees, or
- (b) in aid of its jurisdiction.

(2) The Court of Appeals has appellate jurisdiction, including jurisdiction of interlocutory appeals, over

- (a) the final orders and decrees resulting from formal adjudicative proceedings of state agencies or appeals from the district court review of informal adjudicative proceedings of the agencies, except the Public Service Commission, State Tax Commission, Board of State Lands, Board of Oil, Gas, and Mining, and the state engineer,
- (b) appeals from the district court review of adjudicative proceedings of agencies of political subdivisions of the state or other local agencies,
- (c) appeals from the juvenile courts, except
- (d) appeals from the circuit courts, except those from the small claims department of a circuit court,
- (e) interlocutory appeals from any court record in criminal cases, except those involving charge of a first degree or capital felony,
- (f) appeals from district court in criminal cases, except those involving a conviction of first degree or capital felony,
- (g) appeals from orders on petitions for extraordinary writs involving a criminal conviction, except those involving a first degree or capital felony,

(h) appeals from district court involving domestic relations cases, including but not limited to divorce, annulment, property division, child custody, support, visitation, adoption, and paternity,

- (i) appeals from the Utah Military Court, and
- (j) cases transferred to the Court of Appeals from the Supreme Court.

(3) The Court of Appeals, upon its own motion only and by the vote of four judges of the court, may certify to the Supreme Court for original appellate review and determination any matter over which the Court of Appeals has original appellate jurisdiction.

(4) The Court of Appeals shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 46b, Title 63, in its review of agency adjudicative proceedings. 1988

#### 78-2a-4. Review of actions by Supreme Court.

Review of the judgments, orders, and decrees of the Court of Appeals shall be by petition for writ of certiorari to the Supreme Court. 1986

#### 78-2a-5. Location of Court of Appeals.

The Court of Appeals has its principal location in Salt Lake City. The Court of Appeals may perform any of its functions in any location within the state. 1986

### CHAPTER 3 DISTRICT COURTS

Section	
78-3-1 to 78-3-2	Repealed
78-3-3	Term of judges — Vacancy
78-3-4	Jurisdiction — Transfer of cases to circuit court — Appeals
78-3-5	Repealed
78-3-6	Terms — Minimum of once quarterly
78-3-7 to 78-3-11	Repealed
78-3-11.5	State District Court Administrative System — Primary and secondary county locations
78-3-12	Repealed
78-3-12.5	Costs of system
78-3-13	Repealed
78-3-13.4	Counties joining court system — Procedure — Facilities — Salaries
78-3-13.5, 78-3-14	Repealed
78-3-14.5	Allocation of district court fees and fines
78-3-15, 78-3-16	Repealed
78-3-16.5	Fees for filing and other services or actions
78-3-17	Repealed
78-3-17.5	Application of savings accruing to counties
78-3-18	Judicial Administration Act — Short title
78-3-19	Purpose of act
78-3-20	Definitions
78-3-21	Judicial Council — Creation — Members — Terms and election — Responsibilities — Reports
	Presiding officer — Compensation — Duties
	Administrator of the courts — Appointment — Qualifications — Salary
	Court administrator — Powers, duties, and responsibilities
	Assistants for administrator of the courts — Appointment of trial court executives

Section	
78-3-26	Courts to sit
78-3-27	Annual meeting
78-3-28	Repealed
78-3-29	Presiding judge
78-3-30	Duties of judges

#### 78-3-1 to 78-3-2. Repealed.

#### 78-3-3. Term of judges.

Judges of the district courts shall serve for a term of three years after the first Monday in January following their election. Thereafter, the term of office of a judge of the district courts is six years and until a successor is elected. A judge whose term expires may serve, upon request of the Judicial Council, until a successor is appointed and qualified.

#### 78-3-4. Jurisdiction of district court.

(1) The district courts have jurisdiction of all matters civil and criminal, except those matters which are within the jurisdiction of the Supreme Court and not within the jurisdiction of the district courts.

(2) The district courts have jurisdiction of all writs and orders, except those which are within the jurisdiction of the Supreme Court.

(3) Under the general provisions of the Judicial Administration Act, established by the Judicial Council, which are within the jurisdiction of the circuit court by the court in multiple judge cases in single judge cases may be made up upon the motion of a judge. When an order is made by the court to which the case is referred, the court has the same jurisdiction as the court to which the case is referred. Appeals from final judgments of the district courts.

(4) Appeals from the decrees of the district courts and 78-2a-3.

(5) The district courts have jurisdiction of all agency adjudicative proceedings under Chapter 46b, Title 63, and all matters of that chapter, except those which are within the jurisdiction of the Supreme Court.

#### 78-3-5. Repealed.

#### 78-3-6. Terms — Minimum.

Each district court shall have a seat of each county within each quarter of the year.

#### 78-3-7 to 78-3-11. Repealed.

#### 78-3-11.5. State District Court Administrative System — Purpose.

(1) There is established the State District Court Administrative System. The purpose of the system is to administer the operation of the district courts.

(2) In this chapter, "court administrator" means the court administrator of the district courts.

### Failure to comply with rules and requirements.

on must leave a posted hunting unit immediately on request of a landowner or posted hunting unit, if that person:

- (1) does not have in his possession a posted hunting unit permit;
- (2) endangers or has endangered human life;
- (3) damages or has damaged private property on a posted hunting unit; or
- (4) fails or has failed to comply with reasonable rules of a landowner association. 1988

**2. Damage or destruction of property.** Person on the land of another person may not willfully damage, disarrange, or destroy that property. 1988

### 3. Violation of chapter — Class B misdemeanor.

Person who violates any provision of this chapter is guilty of a class B misdemeanor, unless another punishment is provided elsewhere in the laws of this state. 1988

### 4. Landowner protection under Landowner Liability Act.

Landowners who participate in posted hunting shall have the full protection afforded under Chapter 14, Title 57, the Limitation of Landowner Liability Act. 1988

## TITLE 24

### REGISTRY AND FIRE CONTROL

Repealed by Laws 1961, ch. 53, § 21; 1973, ch. 36, § 1; 1988, ch. 121, § 18.)

## TITLE 25

### FRAUD

Repealed by Laws 1961, ch. 53, § 21; 1973, ch. 36, § 1; 1988, ch. 121, § 18.)

#### CHAPTER 1

##### FRAUDULENT CONVEYANCES

Repealed by Laws 1988, ch. 59, § 16.)

#### CHAPTER 2

##### SALE OF MERCHANDISE IN BULK

Repealed by Laws 1965, ch. 154, § 10-102.)

#### CHAPTER 3

##### EASES AND SALES OF LIVESTOCK

Repealed by Laws 1965, ch. 154, § 10-102.)

#### CHAPTER 4

##### MARKETING WOOL

Repealed by Laws 1965, ch. 154, § 10-102.)

#### CHAPTER 5

##### STATUTE OF FRAUDS

- on
1. Estate or interest in real property.

### Section

- 25-5-2. Wills and implied trusts excepted.
- 25-5-3. Leases and contracts for interest in lands.
- 25-5-4. Certain agreements void unless written and signed.
- 25-5-5. Representation as to credit of third person.
- 25-5-6. Promise to answer for obligation of another — When not required to be in writing.
- 25-5-7. Contracts by telegraph deemed written.
- 25-5-8. Right to specific performance not affected.
- 25-5-9. Agent may sign for principal.

### 25-5-1. Estate or interest in real property.

No estate or interest in real property, other than leases for a term not exceeding one year, nor any trust or power over or concerning real property or in any manner relating thereto, shall be created, granted, assigned, surrendered or declared otherwise than by act or operation of law, or by deed or conveyance in writing subscribed by the party creating, granting, assigning, surrendering or declaring the same, or by his lawful agent thereunto authorized by writing. 1953

### 25-5-2. Wills and implied trusts excepted.

The next preceding section [25-5-1] shall not be construed to affect the power of a testator in the disposition of his real estate by last will and testament; nor to prevent any trust from arising or being extinguished by implication or operation of law. 1953

### 25-5-3. Leases and contracts for interest in lands.

Every contract for the leasing for a longer period than one year, or for the sale, of any lands, or any interest in lands, shall be void unless the contract, or some note or memorandum thereof, is in writing subscribed by the party by whom the lease or sale is to be made, or by his lawful agent thereunto authorized in writing. 1953

### 25-5-4. Certain agreements void unless written and signed.

The following agreements are void unless the agreement, or some note or memorandum of the agreement, is in writing, signed by the party to be charged with the agreement:

- (1) every agreement that by its terms is not to be performed within one year from the making of the agreement;
- (2) every promise to answer for the debt, default, or miscarriage of another;
- (3) every agreement, promise, or undertaking made upon consideration of marriage, except mutual promises to marry;
- (4) every special promise made by an executor or administrator to answer in damages for the liabilities, or to pay the debts, of the testator or intestate out of his own estate;
- (5) every agreement authorizing or employing an agent or broker to purchase or sell real estate for compensation;
- (6) every credit agreement.

(a) As used in Subsection (6):

(i) "Credit agreement" means an agreement by a financial institution to lend, delay, or otherwise modify an obligation to repay money, goods, or things in action, to otherwise extend credit, or to make any other financial accommodation. "Credit agreement" does not include the usual and customary agreements related to deposit accounts or overdrafts or other terms associated

with deposit accounts.

(ii) "Creditor" means a person or institution which extends credit or financial accommodation to a debtor in connection with a credit agreement.

(iii) "Debtor" means a person who receives a financial accommodation in connection with a credit agreement.

(iv) "Financial institution" means a state or federally chartered savings and loan association, industrial loan company, or any other institution subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis, or the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City.

(b) A debtor or a creditor who obtains an action on a credit agreement is in violation of this section if the agreement is in violation of the conditions, and is subject to enforcement against whom enforcement would be sought. For purposes of this section, a credit agreement, if the creditor obtains an additional benefit from the debtor when the agreement is made.

(c) The following actions are prohibited by this section:

- (i) the rendering of a credit agreement by a creditor to a debtor; or
- (ii) the consultation of a credit agreement between a creditor and a debtor; or
- (iii) the creation of a credit agreement between a creditor and a debtor; or
- (iv) Each credit agreement clearly stated typewritten giving notice to the debtor that the agreement is a financial agreement between the creditor and the debtor, and the written agreement is contradicted by evidence of the agreement. The provision of the promissory note or indebtedness that is tied to the agreement.

### 25-5-5. Representation as to credit of third person.

To charge a person upon a representation of a third person, such representation must be in writing, signed by the party to be charged therewith.

### 25-5-6. Promise to answer for obligation of another — When not in writing.

A promise to answer for the obligation of another is deemed a credit agreement if any of the following cases is deemed a credit agreement: (1) Where the promise is made in connection with the receipt of property of another person, or the promise is made to apply it pursuant to a contract with one who has received a discharge in whole or in part in connection with the promise.

with deposit accounts or overdrafts.

(jj) "*Creditor*" means a financial institution which extends credit or extends a financial accommodation under a credit agreement with a debtor.

(iii) "*Debtor*" means a person who seeks or obtains credit, or seeks or receives a financial accommodation, under a credit agreement with a financial institution.

(iv) "*Financial institution*" means a state or federally chartered bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, industrial loan corporation, credit union, or any other institution under the jurisdiction of the commissioner of Financial Institutions as provided in Title 7, Financial Institutions Act of 1981.

(b) A debtor or a creditor may not maintain an action on a credit agreement unless the agreement is in writing, expresses consideration, sets forth the relevant terms and conditions, and is signed by the party against whom enforcement of the agreement would be sought. For purposes of this act, a signed application constitutes a signed agreement, if the creditor does not customarily obtain an additional signed agreement from the debtor when granting the application.

(c) The following actions do not give rise to a claim that a credit agreement is created, unless the agreement satisfies the requirements of Subsection (b):

(i) the rendering of financial advice by a creditor to a debtor;

(ii) the consultation by a creditor with a debtor; or

(iii) the creation for any purpose between a creditor and a debtor of fiduciary or other business relationships.

(d) Each credit agreement shall contain a clearly stated typewritten or printed provision giving notice to the debtor that the written agreement is a final expression of the agreement between the creditor and debtor and the written agreement may not be contradicted by evidence of any alleged oral agreement. The provision does not have to be on the promissory note or other evidence of indebtedness that is tied to the credit agreement.

1989

#### 25-5-5. Representation as to credit of third person.

To charge a person upon a representation as to the credit of a third person, such representation, or some memorandum thereof, must be in writing subscribed by the party to be charged therewith.

1953

#### 25-5-6. Promise to answer for obligation of another — When not required to be in writing.

A promise to answer for the obligation of another in any of the following cases is deemed an original obligation of the promisor and need not be in writing:

(1) Where the promise is made by one who has received property of another upon an undertaking to apply it pursuant to such promise, or by one who has received a discharge from an obligation in whole or in part in consideration of such promise.

(2) Where the creditor parts with value or enters into an obligation in consideration of the obligation in respect to which the promise is made in terms or under circumstances such as to render the party making the promise the principal debtor and the person in whose behalf it is made his surety.

(3) Where the promise, being for an antecedent obligation of another, is made upon the consideration that the party receiving it cancel the antecedent obligation, accepting the new promise as a substitute therefor; or upon the consideration that the party receiving it releases the property of another from a levy or his person from imprisonment under an execution on a judgment obtained upon the antecedent obligation; or upon a consideration beneficial to the promisor, whether moving from either party to the antecedent obligation or from another person.

(4) Where a factor undertakes for a commission to sell merchandise and to guarantee the sale.

(5) When the holder of an instrument for the payment of money upon which a third person is or may become liable to him transfers it in payment of a precedent debt of his own, or for a new consideration, and in connection with such transfer enters into a promise respecting such instrument.

1953

#### 25-5-7. Contracts by telegraph deemed written.

Contracts made by telegraph shall be deemed to be contracts in writing, and all communications sent by telegraph and signed by the person sending the same, or by his authority, shall be deemed to be communications in writing.

1953

#### 25-5-8. Right to specific performance not affected.

Nothing in this chapter contained shall be construed to abridge the powers of courts to compel the specific performance of agreements in case of part performance thereof.

1953

#### 25-5-9. Agent may sign for principal.

Every instrument required by the provisions of this chapter to be subscribed by any party may be subscribed by the lawful agent of such party.

1953

## CHAPTER 6

### UNIFORM FRAUDULENT TRANSFER ACT

#### Section

25-6-1. Short title.

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