1989

Jerry Spicer v. Michael S. Hughes : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The bald payment of money from the Plaintiff to another for the benefit of the Defendant, does not, as a matter of law, imply a duty on the part of Defendant to repay, even if payment was made at the direction or request of the Defendant.

The introduction and consideration of evidence at trial of the circumstances surrounding the subject transaction was not barred by the Statute of Frauds.

The Findings of Fact were logically founded upon the evidence at trial, and were not clearly erroneous, and should not be

disturbed.

It was not an abuse of discretion for the Court to deny Plaintiff's motion to allow the case to remain open to a later date to permit testimony of Mr. Spicer.

Because of the relative merits of the parties' positions in this matter, and because of the nature of the issues raised by Appellant on appeal, the Plaintiff should be ordered by this Court, pursuant to Rule 33 of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals to pay Defendant's costs and attorney fees incurred through the defense of this action.

ARGUMENT

Point I

MR. HUGHES HAS NO DUTY TO REPAY MR. SPICER.

In Plaintiff's Complaint, Spicer alleges the existence of a loan in the amount of \$11,221.80, to be repaid in ten (10) days. The burden is on the Plaintiff to prove the elements of his case. The Plaintiff here is unable to do so. At trial, Plaintiff urged the Court to find that the Defendant had an implied duty at law to repay monies paid on his behalf to third persons. The Court gave leave to Counsel to brief and present to the Court legal argument in support of his proposition. The Court received plaintiff's "post-trial memorandum" which propounds in substance the argument contained in Point I of Appellant's Brief. Plaintiff now urges this Court to reverse the Judgment of the District

Court and to enter Judgment of Plaintiff as prayed for in the Complaint. Counsel for the Plaintiff relies on his interpretation of the Common Law rules of assumpsit in support of his position, citing five cases. Each of these cases can be distinguished and are of limited precedential value.

Island Petroleum Co. v. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 57 F.2d 992 (4th Cir. 1932) Cert. den. 287 U.S. 646 (1933) is factually dissimilar. There the Plaintiff was attempting to receive a certain tax benefit after it had thrown good money after bad. The facts disclosed that the lender had continued to advance money to borrowers for the development of oil properties, even after the venture proved worthless. The finding of the tax board was that "the amounts paid out by the petitioner to or for the Texas corporations were merely advances or loans by the petitioner." id. at 994. The Court held that the advances made were loans which the Texas corporations would repay if the business venture was successful. Here there was no finding that this transaction was a loan.

In Kennedy v. Conrad, 9 Mont. 356, 9 P.2d 1075, (1932), the defendants were owners of an oil and gas lease on property on which they were obligated to drill an oil well. Plaintiffs acquired an overriding royalty interest in the proceeds. After commercial quantities of petroleum was found, "the well required cleaning to prevent it from becoming valueless through caving, and to prevent defendants' rights from being forfeited for non-

production of oil and gas in commercial quantities; that, for the protection of the said lease and plaintiffs' interests therein, it was necessary that someone should furnish the money for the cleaning out and swabbing... that the defendants were unable to pay for the same or to perform the said labor, and that at the instance and the request of the defendants...the plaintiffs advanced to defendants for the use and benefit of all of them (certain amounts at certain times and under certain conditions)... and that in equity and good conscience the defendants should repay the said amount to the plaintiffs." Kennedy at 1076. The Court held "Since the parties made an agreement with respect to the emergency confronting them, and since the advancements were made pursuant to the agreement, plaintiffs, if they insisted upon the right of indemnity from defendants, should have made provision to that effect as a part of the agreement. The circumstances under which plaintiffs paid the money negative any expectation of its return from defendants...." id at 1079. The Court here found no agreement between the parties, after considering, as did the Court in Kennedy, the circumstances surrounding the transaction.

In Sommer v. Nakdimen, 97 F.2d 715 (8th Cir. 1938), an Arkansas Court was asked to enforce a stale negotiable note where the defendant had for many years promised in writing to repay. The defendant raised the Arkansas Statute of Frauds and Statute

of Limitations. The Court held that the claim, since founded on an implied contract, was be barred by the Statute of Limitations. Sommer at 722.

In Minsky's Follies of Florida v. Sennes, 206 F.2d 1 (5th Cir. 1953), the Florida trial Court was asked to enforce an oral lease agreement of over one year evidenced by a series of telegrams and letters. The defendant raised the Florida statute of frauds as a defense. The Court held that the lease was unenforceable and barred by the statute of frauds. But because of the attending circumstances, the Court did find that certain expenditures made by the plaintiff for the benefit of defendant did not flow from the breach of the lease itself, and were therefore recoverable. The Trial Court here likewise considered the context in which this transaction occurred, and held that the Defendant did not owe the Plaintiff.

In Roussel v. Russell, 339 P.2d 522 (Okla. 1959), the Court interpreted an oral agreement, under which the defendant was to pay the plaintiff his costs expended in obtaining for the defendant certain oil and gas leases. The defendant attempted unsuccessfully to have the contract deemed unenforceable as violative of the Oklahoma statute of frauds.

"It therefore appears us not to be within the Statute of Frauds, but, on the contrary, to be within the class of cases where, after the contract directly concerning the interest in land has been executed, the action has been held to lie upon a separate promise to be per-

formed after such execution.

Whether the present action be regarded as founded on an express promise, or an implied one, or whether defendant's final promise to pay for the plaintiff had obtained, related back to, and was connected with, his original request for leases on the interest of all of the Quigley heirs, or whether it be regarded as founded on quasi, or constructive, contract, we think that instead of being an action to charge a defendant on a contract to convey an interest in real estate--and within the Statute of Frauds--it is solely for the recovery of money paid, lent, or advanced, and is in the nature of assumpsit, in which actions for 'money had or received had their origin." Roussel at 527.

Again, the Court found an agreement to repay, and because of the surrounding circumstances of the transactions, enforced that agreement. Here, there was no agreement for the Court to enforce, and the Court found no other basis to award Judgment for the Plaintiff.

Assumpsit has been discussed by Utah Courts relatively infrequently. In Beecher v. Salt Lake City, 531 P.2d 1300, (Utah 1975), the Court disallowed an architect's claim of an additional \$130,000 in fees for alleged extra work. In Build v. Italasano, 398 P.2d 544, (Utah 1965), the Court would not disturb the Trial Court's findings that although there was not an enforceable contract, that in order to "effectuate substantial justice in equity,... that from the evidence, on a quasi-contractual basis, Build was entitled to judgment...." Build at 544. "The trial

court, finding no express or enforceable contract, did find that there was a quasi-contractual relationship which is law, rather than an equity, action. (footnote omitted) It thereupon assessed the value of the benefits conferred upon the Italasanos by Build and entered judgment accordingly. (footnote omitted) In reviewing the record, we cannot say that the lower court's findings and judgment, viewed in the light most favorable to them, were unsound or unreasonable." id at 545. Here, the findings of the Court were contrary, but similarly are well founded in the evidence and should not be disturbed.

And, in Manwill v. Oyler, 361 P.2d 177 (Utah 1961), although assumpsit is not discussed specifically, the factual setting is somewhat analogous to the instant case. There, the plaintiff sued to recover the amount of payments he had made on defendants' behalf. Plaintiff alleged that during the years 1950, 1951, 1952, and 1953 he had made payments on defendants' behalf on a farm occupied by the defendants, and that in 1954 had transferred a valuable grazing permit and eighteen head of cattle to them. Plaintiff further alleged that in July or August, 1956, defendants orally agreed to repay plaintiff. Manwill at 177. The Utah Supreme Court held that since the plaintiff could not allege facts sufficient to make the alleged oral promise of 1957 a binding contract, inasmuch as a mere moral obligation is not valid consideration, it was error to deny the defendants' motion to dismiss. id at 179.

Appellant fails in his Brief to cite to any Utah authority to support his position that the common law rules of assumpsit are viable in this jurisdiction, and if they are, why Mr. Hughes has an implied duty at law to repay Mr. Spicer. Even if the rules of assumpsit as propounded by Plaintiff are applicable to this case, the Court did not find any legal or equitable reason given the particular facts of this case to award Judgment to the Plaintiff.

Point II.

THE STATUTE OF FRAUDS DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS CASE.

Utah Code Annotated Section 25-5-4 (2) as part of the Utah Statute of Frauds provides "The following agreements are void unless the agreement, or some note or memorandum of the agreement, is in writing signed by the party to be charged with the agreement (2) every promise to answer for the debt, default or miscarriage of another; (emphasis added). Here, the Court was not faced with a promise to repay. Mr. Hughes never promised to repay Mr. Spicer. Mr. Hughes testified that Mr. Spicer owed Hughes money. Mr. Hughes also testified that others associated with Mr. Spicer owed Hughes money. Mr. Spicer actually paid monies to third persons for the benefit of Mr. Hughes. Plaintiff alleges that in order to enforce the "contract" between Spicer and Hughes for Spicer to answer for the debt of a third party that it must be in writing. But Mr. Hughes is not attempt-

ing in this action to collect from Mr. Spicer. Spicer already repaid a portion of the money owed to Hughes and is now attempting to reverse that transaction by raising the Statute of Frauds as a "defense" even though he is the Plaintiff. The evidence adduced at trial while possibly irrelevant to the issue of whether third party associates of Mr. Spicer owed Mr. Hughes, was nonetheless relevant to the issue of the existence of a "loan" from Spicer to Hughes as alleged in Plaintiff's Complaint. The Court heard competent testimony relative to the course of dealings between the parties in its determination of the context of the payment of the \$11,000 by Mr. Spicer to the third person on Mr. Hughes' behalf. The evidence was not barred by the Statute of Frauds, and was properly admitted and considered by the Court.

Point III.

THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS NUMBERS 3 AND 4 AND THE JUDGMENT ARE SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE AND SHOULD NOT BE DISTURBED.

Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 59 (a) governs the method by which a dissatisfied party may have a case reopened. The Plaintiff here did not comply with the Rule.

The standard by which this Court must examine the findings of the lower Court is one of "clearly erroneous". "We give great deference to the trial courts' findings of fact and do not overturn them unless they are clearly erroneous." In re Estate of Bartrell, 776 P.2d 885, 886 (Utah 1989). That finding (of

fact) is entitled to a presumption of correctness, and on appeal, the evidence is surveyed in the light most favorable to the finding." College Irrigation Company v. Logan River and Blacksmith Fork Irrigation Co., 780 P.2d 1241 (Utah 1989) (citing Harline v. Campbell, 728 P.2d 980, 982 (Utah 1986)). "If there is a reasonable basis in the evidence to support the finding, the finding will not be overturned unless it is clearly erroneous. College Irrigation at 1244. Further, "it is incumbent upon appellants to marshal all of the evidence in support of the findings of the trial court and to then demonstrate that even when viewed in the light most favorable to the factual determination of the trial court, the evidence is insufficient to support its findings." (citing Harline, supra at 982.) "Failure of appellants to do so in the instant case is, in and of itself, dispositive of their challenge to the trial court's findings of fact." College Irrigation, supra at 1244, (citing Scharf v. B.M.G. Corp., 700 P.2d 1068, 1070 (Utah 1985). Findings Numbers 3 and 4 by Judge Daniels are not clearly erroneous, and therefore must be upheld.

The evidence at trial showed that Mr. Spicer owed Hughes money. Citram Corp., of which Mr. Spicer was an officer owed Hughes money. U.S.S. & T., of which Mr. Spicer was an officer, owed Hughes money. In the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the Trial Court did not err in its Findings relative to these issues.

The Conclusions of Law reached by the Court flowed naturally and directly from the evidence, and were not based exclusively on Findings Numbers 3 and 4 as alleged in Plaintiff's Brief, but were determined by the totality of the factual evidence presented at trial. Even if arguendo Findings #3 and #4 were totally erroneous, and not at all supported by the evidence, the legal conclusions still stand on their own merits, and should not be disturbed. There simply was not an agreement between Spicer and Hughes that Hughes would repay the money paid by Spicer to the third party at the direction of Hughes. There is no evidence that this was a "loan". Mr. Hughes testified specifically that this transaction was not a loan. And given the test as outlined above from College Irrigation, the Plaintiff clearly has not met his burden of overcoming the presumption of correctness, which is dispositive on this issue.

Because the testimony of the witness and the evidence introduced at trial substantiate the Findings, they cannot be found to be clearly erroneous, and as such must be upheld.

Point IV.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN ITS RULINGS AT TRIAL.

Trial Courts are afforded wide latitude respecting the conduct of trial. Here, Judge Daniels did not err in denying Plaintiff's motion to continue or to hold the trial open. This matter had already been continued once at the instance of Plain-

tiff. The motion to continue was not timely filed, but was made orally at the time set for trial. Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 40 governs the circumstances by which a postponement could occur. Mr. Spicer as the Plaintiff had the affirmative obligation to attend the trial if he wished to testify and present evidence. Counsel for Plaintiff presented no evidence other than bald assertions as to the unavailability of the Plaintiff. Even if Mr. Spicer was in fact medically precluded from flying to the trial, there exist alternate methods of transportation. Further, Plaintiff was not left without a remedy even facing the posture in which he was voluntarily placed, as counsel could have dismissed the action without prejudice, and refiled. Instead, counsel stated on the record that he was prepared to proceed (TR:3, 4, and 6), and in fact put on his case in chief. Given this scenario, the Court did not err in refusing Plaintiff's motions.

Point V.

PLAINTIFF SHOULD BE ORDERED TO PAY DEFENDANT'S COSTS INCURRED
IN DEFENSE OF THIS ACTION.

Plaintiff should be ordered to pay costs of this Appeal. This Court is afforded wide latitude in the apportionment of costs of appeal. (see: Riche v. Riche, __P.2d__, (Utah App. 1989), Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City v. Daskalas, P.2d (Utah App. 1989), Maughan v. Maughan, 770 P.2d 156 (Utah App.

1989)).

Rules of Utah Court of Appeals 33(a) governs this issue. Rule 33(a) states that attorney fees may be awarded when "the motion made on an appeal taken under these rules is either frivolous or for delay.... In Cody v. Johnson, 671 P.2d 149, 151 (Utah 1983), the Supreme Court equated frivolous with being without merit. "A frivolous appeal is one without merit." O'Brien v. Rush, 744 P.2d 306, 310 (Utah App. 1987). "For purposes of Rule 33(a) of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals we define a "frivolous appeal" as one having no reasonable legal or factual basis as defined in Rule 40 (a)." "Since a party has already been to court once and had the benefit of one ruling, the decision to appeal should be rendered only after careful consideration by the party and counsel." "Defendant's claim on appeal simply controvert the findings of the court. The claims are not only without merit but are also without basis in law or fact." O'Brien supra at 310.